
Date Published:13 June 2017     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Wednesday 21 June 2017 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Laura Powick

2  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

To elect a Chairman for the Civic Year (2017/18)

Laura Powick

3  ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 

To elect a Vice-Chairman for the Civic Year (2017/18)

Laura Powick

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests by members.

Laura Powick

5  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 15 March 2017.

Laura Powick

6  ECONOMIC GROWTH AGENDA (Pages 7 - 16)

To note the attached briefing paper outlining the evolving policy 
landscape underlying the economic growth agenda. 

Nigel Riglar

7  GFIRST LEP UPDATE (Pages 17 - 28)

To receive a report on the delivery of the Growth Deal Programme 

Mally Findlater



    

in the County, and on the process for the re-allocation of Growth 
Deal Funds.

8  BUSINESS RATE POOL (Pages 29 - 34)

To receive an update report on the Business Rate Pool and 
potential expenditure options for the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund.

David Stanley

9  GOVERNMENT INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY 

To note the consultation responses submitted by the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee and GFirst LEP.

The responses can be accessed using the following links:

GEGJC Response: 
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s36260/Industrial%
20Strategy%20ConsultationDraftJC%20March2017.pdf

GFirst LEP Response: 
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s36127/Industrial%
20Strategy%20Response%20v2.pdf

Nigel Riglar

10  EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS (Pages 35 - 42)

To note a written update on progress towards the formation of an 
Employment and Skills Board and Skills Strategy for the County.

Pete Carr

11  FUTURE MEETING DATES 
To note that the Committee is due to meet on the following 
dates in 2017 and 2018:

Wednesday 6 September 2017
Wednesday 29 November 2017
Wednesday 14 March 2018
Wednesday 20 June 2018
Wednesday 5 September 2018
Wednesday 21 November 2018

All meetings to start at 10am (this allows meetings of the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny committee to take 
place on the same day).

Laura Powick

Membership –  Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cllr Dave Waters, Cllr Paul James, Cllr 
Steve Jordan, Cllr Christopher Hancock and Cllr Steve Lydon
Mally Findlater and Dev Chakraborty

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s36260/Industrial%20Strategy%20ConsultationDraftJC%20March2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s36260/Industrial%20Strategy%20ConsultationDraftJC%20March2017.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s36127/Industrial%20Strategy%20Response%20v2.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s36127/Industrial%20Strategy%20Response%20v2.pdf


    

Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Members are required to sign the attendance list.

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

- 1 - 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Wednesday 15 March 2017 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - 
Shire Hall, Gloucester. 

 
 

PRESENT 
MEMBERSHIP: 

 

 Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE 
Cllr Paul James 
Cllr Steve Jordan 
Cllr Patrick Molyneux 
 

Cllr Robert Vines 
Cllr Christopher Hancock 
Mally Findlater 
Dev Chakraborty 
 

Substitutes:  
 

Apologies: Cllr Steve Lydon 

 
69. APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Steve Lydon. 
 
There were no substitutions at this meeting. 
 

70. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were made.  
 

71. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2016 were approved by the 
Committee and signed by the Chairman, subject to an amendment to page 3, item 
65, paragraph 4, where it should read ‘it was explained that modifications to the 
JCS would be brought back to Gloucester City, Tewkesbury Borough and 
Cheltenham Borough Councils in the new year, with the aim for consultation to 
begin by the end of March 2017.’ 
 

72. GFIRST LEP UPDATE  
 
Mally Findlater, Programme Manager, GFirst LEP, provided the Committee with an 
update on the delivery of the Growth Programme, including Growth Deal 3. 
 
Members were provided with an overview of the status of projects that were going 
through the approval and funding process. The Committee noted that the majority 
of projects had been received by the LEP Board for approval for funding agreement 
and had gone through for delivery.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 2 - 
 

The Committee noted that the out turn from the current Growth Deal programme to 
date was £19.01m, and that the total leverage declared by projects was £64m. The 
wider job impacts were to be assessed periodically. It was also noted that the local 
assurance framework and appendices had been updated and were available on the 
GFirst LEP website.  
 
The Committee was informed that the LEP Annual Conversation with BEIS in 
December 2016 had been successful, and that BEIS representatives were 
complimentary about the programme management of Growth Deal funding. It was 
acknowledged that whilst there had been an underspend in 2016/17, this was not 
the subject of undue concern, and it was expected that the cumulative underspend 
would recover considerably in 2017/18.  
 
It was explained that the Government had allocated £29.13m to GFirst LEP in the 
latest round of Growth Deal funding, which was higher than expected. In particular, 
funding was provided for the Cyber Park project, and it was noted that meetings 
had already commenced regarding the delivery of the project. 
 
In response to a query, it was explained that there had been no indication from the 
Government as to whether there would be further Growth Deal rounds in the future. 
It was recommended that the Committee continue to use the Gloucestershire 
Infrastructure Investment Pipeline to develop the infrastructure priorities for funding 
opportunities. It was noted that the Committee would need to consider the 
Government strategy on infrastructure funding, should it change in the future. 
 
The Committee noted the report. 
 

73. EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS  
 
Pete Carr, Lead Commissioner: Employment and Skills, Gloucestershire County 
Council, provided members with an update on progress towards the formation of an 
Employment and Skills Board (ESB). 
 
The Committee noted that Pete Carr had been seconded from GFirst LEP to 
Gloucestershire County Council for four days a week as Lead Commissioner: 
Employment and Skills, to take forward the establishment and operation of the 
ESB. It was also noted that the Strategic Alliance had agreed to allow Kathryn 
Wagstaff, who was employed by the University of Gloucestershire on behalf of the 
Strategic Alliance, to continue working with the ESB.  
 
It was explained that a diagram had been developed to give structure to the Board 
and the reporting process, and that work was being undertaken to build up an 
evidence base for the ESB, which included updating the LEP Skills Statement. It 
was noted that the Skills Statement would be refreshed annually.  
 
Additionally, members were informed that a Gloucestershire business survey was 
being developed, which would provide local detail on employment and skills, and 
that the draft terms of reference for the Board had been prepared and shared with 
the Committee, education providers, and other organisations for feedback.  

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 3 - 
 

 
 
Members were informed that Gloucestershire County Council was investing over 
£100k over two years into the ESB through officer support, research and analysis, 
however there was no separate budget for the ESB. Resources would be sought 
from several sources, including the GFirst LEP and Strategic Alliance.  
 
The Committee discussed the remit and focus of the ESB. In response to a 
question, it was explained that topics discussed by the ESB would be available 
openly, and that the Board would report to this Committee and the GFirst LEP 
Board.  
 
In particular, the Committee discussed the importance of focussing on skills 
relevant to the development of the Cyber Park. It was noted that the Cyber Park 
had not been highlighted within the Skills Statement as it had been updated based 
on historical data, however the ESB could focus on the Cyber Park as a priority. 
Other areas for focus considered by the Committee included green and new 
technologies, and social care. 
 
The importance of developing skills in children at an early stage was also 
recognised by the Committee, in addition to developing infrastructure to encourage 
the retention of skills.  
 
There was some discussion about the recent information on Institutes of 
Technology. 
 
Pete Carr welcomed further conversations with District Councils to establish any 
specific employment and skills needs they would like taken into account by the 
ESB, and to establish who best to liaise with over District employment and skills 
matters. 
 
The Committee noted the report.  
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the update on the establishment of the Gloucestershire 

Employment and Skills Board; and, as part of the next steps 
 

2. To meet with District Councils to establish any specific employment and 
skills needs they would like taken into account by the Employment and 
Skills Board. 

 
74. GOVERNMENT INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY  

 
Claire Edwards, Outcome Manager, Gloucestershire County Council, presented the 
Committee with the Government Industrial Strategy draft response for 
consideration. 
 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 4 - 
 

It was explained that the development of the Government’s Industrial Strategy 
coincided with several factors, including the anticipated formal triggering of the 
Brexit process, the creation of a Productivity Plan, and a ‘re-set’ of the 
Government’s approach to devolution. The Industrial Strategy, which was published 
on 23rd January 2017, set out a 10-point plan, called ‘the ten pillars’, to act as a 
focus for driving the strategy.  
 
Members were informed that the Green Paper was intended to act as consultation 
route, and that there were 38 consultation questions. The deadline for responses 
was 17th April 2017.  
 
The Committee noted that the LEP was submitting its own response on behalf of 
business. It was agreed that the Committee’s response and the LEP’s response 
should highlight common ground and be complementary. 
 
The Committee discussed the ten pillars and the key elements to be addressed in 
Gloucestershire’s response.   
 
Members were asked to feedback on the content of the draft response to the 
consultation on the Government Industrial Strategy Green Paper by 30th March 
2017. The final draft response would then be circulated with Committee members 
by email for sign-off by 3rd April 2017. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To agree the proposed draft; 

 
2. To contribute further comments to the next stage of drafting;  

 
3. To agree a sign-off mechanism; and 

 
4. To note the ‘business’ response being prepared by the LEP. 
 

75. NATIONAL INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENT CONSULTATION RESPONSE  
 
Nigel Riglar, Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure, 
Gloucestershire County Council, presented the National Infrastructure Assessment 
consultation response submitted by Gloucestershire County Council to the 
Committee.  
 
It was noted that the consultation response was compiled by the Senior Officer 
Group due to the short timescale given for responses, however the response 
reflected previous Committee discussions on infrastructure.  
 
Several members highlighted issues which they felt could have been referenced in 
greater detail in the consultation response, including the long-term infrastructure 
ambitions for the County. There was some discussion regarding the need to finalise 
the Vision 2050 work being undertaken to prioritise these long-term ambitions. 
 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 5 - 
 

The Committee noted the consultation response.  
 

76. BUSINESS RATE POOL  
 
David Stanley, Accountancy Manager, Stroud District Council, provided the 
Committee with an update on the Business Rate Pool. 
 
The Committee was informed that the 2016/17 forecast for the Business Rates Pool 
had been revised down to £2.382m, representing a slight increase over the 
September position of £1.983m, and, based on current governance arrangements, 
the Strategic Economic Development Fund would receive around £280k. 
 
Members noted that the initial forecast for 2017/18 estimated that an additional 
£4.023m would be retained in Gloucestershire due to changes in pool levy rate. 
However, the estimate needed to be considered in light of several risks, which 
would include the new rateable values and the potential for significant appeals. The 
Committee considered whether forecast estimates could be more accurately 
projected and the margin of error reduced.   
 
It was understood that the Government’s aim was to introduce the new 100% 
Business Rates Retention system for the 2019/20 financial year. The Government 
had also indicated that they would welcome applications from councils to participate 
in further business rates pilots in 2018/19 in areas without a devolution deal, 
including two-tier council areas. Members considered the opportunities and 
potential risks of 100% business rates retention and discussed the opportunity for 
Gloucestershire to take part in the pilot. It was suggested that conversations could 
be held with other local authorities already taking part in the pilot for the new 
system, in order to aid learning on how to be successful in any bid.  
 
Nigel Riglar explained to the Committee the potential expenditure options for the 
Strategic Economic Development Fund. The proposals would be developed further 
for formal consideration by the Committee at a future meeting.  
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the forecast position for 2016/17 and 2017/18; and 

 
2. To note the emerging propositions for the potential utilisation of the 

Strategic Economic Development Fund. 
 

77. FUTURE MEETING DATES  
 
The Committee noted the meeting dates for the remainder of 2017. 
 
 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

 
Meeting concluded at 12.00 pm 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 6 - 
 

 
 

Page 6



Gloucestershire Economic Context Briefing AGENDA NO: 

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 

Report author Mike Dawson – Chief Executive, Tewkesbury Borough Council

Nigel Riglar – Commissioning Director: Communities & Infrastructure, 
Gloucestershire County Council

Background 
documents

1. Economic Growth Context Briefing 

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

As attached.

Main consultees N/A

Planned dates The election on the 8 June and subsequent new government budget 
position papers.

Purpose of report This report provides an update on the Growth Agenda, considering:
1. Growth policy;
2. Mechanisms for delivering growth; and
3. Opportunities at a local Gloucestershire level

Recommendations

The Joint Committee is invited to note the content of the briefing and 
particular considerations for Gloucestershire. 

Reasons for 
recommendations

N/A

Resource 
Implications

There are no direct resource implications associated with this briefing 
paper in the short-term.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



1 Growth Agenda

Introduction
1.1 This briefing and context paper summarises the range of government policies that have or might 

have a bearing on Gloucestershire’s growth ambition. It coincides with a number of importance 
developments including: the formal triggering of the Brexit process; the development of the 
government’s industrial strategy; and a ‘re-set’ of the government’s approach to devolution outside 
the major urban areas. At the time of writing, the new government is unknown so this follows 
current policy as far as possible or links topics to current manifesto pledges.

The Growth Policy

Inclusive Growth
1.2 Inclusive growth is a term that has been gaining traction significantly over a number of recent years. 

In defining inclusive growth, the findings from the recent Inclusive Growth Commission, Chaired by 
Stephanie Flanders has concluded the following requirements to progress:

 Place-based industrial strategies: Delivering business-led productivity and quality 
jobs through lifelong learning to develop sectoral coalitions linking industry sectors 
and places and the creation of new institutions to connect business and industry

 A fundamental reset of the relationship between Whitehall and the town hall, 
underwritten in new social contracts: Allowing flexibility of budgets to support co-
commissioning for health and social care and other public service areas such as 
education, skills and employment support to maximise impact and reduce silo 
spending

 Inclusive growth at the heart of public investment: Basing funding models 
on expected impact on broad based ‘quality GVA’, the establishment of regional 
banks and an independent UK Inclusive Growth Investment Fund overseen by a 
multi-stakeholder board.

 Making inclusive growth our working definition of economic success: Understanding 
social infrastructure gap and defining inclusive growth metrics which would be 
developed alongside social contracts.

1.3 Yet to be adopted but key to defining the inclusive nature of growth, there are key links to the 
recent Industrial Strategy green paper.

Industrial Strategy
1.4 The Prime Minister announced the intention to deliver an Industrial Strategy to identify ‘industries 

that are of strategic value to our economy’ and promote them ‘through policies on trade, tax, 
infrastructure, skills, training, and research and development’.

1.5 Published on 23 January, the Government’s industrial strategy has three broad aims:

 Build on our strengths and extend excellence into the future;

Page 8



 Close the gap between the UK’s most productive companies, industries, places and 
people and the rest; and

 Make the UK one of the most competitive places in the world to start or grow a 
business.

1.6 It highlights a 10-point plan which will act as a focus for driving the strategy. The ‘pillars’ of the 
strategy include:

1. Investing in science, research and innovation – becoming a more innovative economy and do 
more to commercialise our world leading science base.

2. Developing skills – helping people and businesses to thrive by: ensuring everyone has the 
basic skills needed in a modern economy; building a new system of technical education to 
benefit the half of young people who do not go to university; boosting STEM (science, 
technology, engineering and maths) skills, digital skills and numeracy; and by raising skill 
levels in lagging areas.

3. Upgrading infrastructure – upgrading our standards of performance on digital, energy, 
transport, water and flood defence infrastructure, and better aligning central government 
infrastructure investment with local growth priorities.

4. Supporting businesses to start and grow – ensuring that businesses across the UK can access 
the finance and management skills they need to grow; and creating the right conditions for 
companies to invest for the long term.

5. Improving procurement – using strategic government procurement to drive innovation and 
enable the development of UK supply chains.

6. Encouraging trade and inward investment – using government policy can help boost 
productivity and growth across our economy, including by increasing competition and 
helping to bring new ways of doing things to the UK.

7. Delivering affordable energy and clean growth – keeping costs down for businesses, and 
securing the economic benefits of the transition to a low-carbon economy.

8. Cultivating world-leading sectors – building on our areas of competitive advantage, and 
helping new sectors to flourish, in many cases challenging existing institutions and 
incumbents.

9. Driving growth across the whole country – creating a framework to build on the particular 
strengths of different places and address factors that hold places back – whether it is 
investing in key infrastructure projects to encourage growth, increasing skill levels, or 
backing local innovation strengths.

10. Creating the right institutions to bring together sectors and places – considering the best 
structures to support people, industries and places. In some places and sectors there    may 
be missing institutions which could be created, or existing ones strengthened, be they local 
civic or educational institutions, trade associations or financial networks.

1.7 The strategy marks a commitment to long term planning for industry, building on Britain’s strengths 
and identifying new growth industries. 

Page 9



1.8 Gloucestershire’s response to the Industrial Strategy highlighted several areas that were missing 
from the strategy which relate specifically to securing growth and competitive advantage for the 
area. This included: 

 A rural component – less ‘Metro’ focus to make room for content on ‘local’ 
measures and a spatial dimension which reflects the relative pillars. This should 
acknowledge economies outside cities. 

 Greater strategic connections between the supply and management of energy and 
digital as well as housing and infrastructure requirements.

 Greater recognition of the pivotal and central role that local government plays; 
providing a link to the ten pillars outlined in the emerging strategy.

 A response from government about how departments are going to work differently.

 How central government is going to achieve closer alignment and how departments 
across Whitehall are going to reduce duplication. This extends to tying together the 
range of government strategies such as the 2016 Productivity Plan, 2017 Housing 
White Paper, DEFRA’s 2020 Strategy to name a few.

 How success and opportunities can be gained in a post-Brexit scenario to define our 
competitive advantage within certain parts of the economy. 

 Consideration of the local authority Planning Policy role – in particular the need for 
balanced housing and employment growth and competing policy priorities.

 Delivering greater collaboration with businesses and projects to drive innovation, 
increasing investment in R&D and driving up productivity. There is not much detail 
on the input and role of business and the role of LEPs in delivering this key priority.

 Strengthen links between localities – Gloucestershire sits to the north of the South 
West and plays a key role as the ‘engine’ of the region. However, given its 
juxtaposition the area also needs to ensure strong links looking north towards the 
Midlands. As growth sector of cyber develop, this link at a national level will be 
increasingly important. 

Productivity Plan
1.9 The government’s Productivity Plan which launched in 2015 highlighted the need for UK industry to 

become more productive by improving Gross Value Added (GVA) for the country. It recognised that 
output per hour in the UK is 17% below the G7 average and behind that of Germany, France and the 
United States. The Plan set out fifteen areas that could help solve Britain’s productivity problem. 
These included: increasing workforce skills; seeking international investment; world-leading 
universities open to all; and planning freedoms with more houses to buy.

Brexit
1.10 At a national level, there are a number of uncertainties and this strategy reacts in a void of detailed 

information. The government’s recent White Paper ‘The United Kingdom’s exit from and new 
partnership with the European Union’ gives some clarity over Britain’s exit from the EU. Trade 
negotiations are ongoing with an anticipated two-year window to reach trade agreements, while the 
impact of Brexit on labour is uncertain. Alongside this has been a significant pot of EU funding 

Page 10



accessible in support of initiatives to drive start-ups and business growth while upskilling and 
supporting those furthest from the labour market. The security of this funding and access to it at a 
LEP level is yet unknown but all manifestos are seeking to protect its future in some form or another.

1.11 A consideration for Gloucestershire would be to understand the level of migrant labour that may be 
affected by immigration policy as it is developed with the new government and exit arrangements 
from the EU. The skills gap that is likely to arise will need to be considered in relation to the local 
economy and the skills landscape. 

The mechanisms for delivering growth

Devolution
1.12 The first ‘devolution deal’ was announced by the Government and the Greater Manchester 

Combined Authority in November 2014. Since then, twelve deals have been agreed with half of 
those appointing Mayors bringing a more substantive package and more powers to the spatial area 
in question. The list of these areas and the powers devolved can be found in Appendix 1.  

1.13 The deals that have been put in place to date have similarities in regard to the powers to be 
devolved. These include:

 Restructuring the further education system - local commissioning of the Adult Skills 
Budget from 2016-17, followed by full devolution of the budget from 2018-19. Areas 
will be required to undertake a full review of further education and skills provision, 
and to have agreed arrangements with the Government for managing financial risk. 
Some areas will also take on the Apprenticeship Grant for Employers. 

 Business support - local and central business support services will be united in a 
‘growth hub’. UK Trade and Investment will be required to partner with local 
business support services. Many deals have agreed a “devolved approach” to 
business support services from 2017. 

 The Work Programme - a programme for ‘harder-to-help’ benefit claimants in 
support of the Government’s main welfare-to-work programme. 

 EU structural funds - ‘intermediate body’ status to allow decisions about which 
public and private bodies to give EU structural funds to. Local areas will be able to 
link these funding decisions to investment decisions they make in other devolved 
areas, such as further education and business support, provided their decisions 
remain within the terms of the EU structural funding agreement. 

 Fiscal powers - including an investment fund, often of £30 million per year. The 
division of this fund into capital and revenue elements varies between areas. The 
power to retain 100% of business rates growth also appears in a number of deals; 
and some areas are piloting full rate retention in advance of its introduction across 
England by 2020. Elected mayors will have the power to add a supplement of up to 
2% on business rates, with the agreement of the relevant Local Enterprise 
Partnership.

 Integrated transport systems - including the power to introduce bus franchising, 
which would allow local areas to determine their bus route networks and to let 
franchises to private bus companies for operating services on those networks as well 

Page 11



as multi-modal ‘smart ticketing’ systems, akin to the Oyster Card in London. Each 
deal also includes a unified multi-year transport investment budget, and most 
commit to improving joint working between the combined authority and Network 
Rail, Highways England, and (where relevant) plans for the HS2 line. 

 Planning and land use - powers to create a spatial plan for the area, and/or the 
power to establish Mayoral Development Corporations. Some deals will also permit 
the combined authority to use Compulsory Purchase Orders, with the consent of the 
local authority in which the land or property is located. Non-statutory joint bodies 
(‘Land Commissions’ or ‘Joint Asset Boards’) will be established to improve the 
management of surplus land and buildings across public sector bodies, making joint 
decisions on whether to re-use, share, or sell unused land and buildings within the 
public estate. 

1.14 Each of these components may be of interest to Gloucestershire as each brings about a potential to 
deliver step change in growth1. 

Local Growth Deal
1.15 The Local Growth Deal has for several years now been a mechanism for delivering high priority 

infrastructure and initiatives to economic functional areas. Gloucestershire was particularly 
successful in the most recent round of funding with a £20m allocation for the GCHQ / Cheltenham 
Cyber Business Park providing opportunities for improving productivity and skills development 
within this growth sector as well as improving the intellectual property of the country.  

1.16 There is no indication of an imminent Growth Deal funding round but recent history suggests that 
funding rounds are launched post autumn statement / budget announcements. The current 
government announced last year that it was moving away from the autumn statement and spring 
budget to a single autumn budget position. This remains to be cemented through a new 
government.  

1.17 There is also no indication that future growth funding won’t be delivered through LEP structures 
other than through a devolution deal. Gloucestershire may choose to continue negotiations with 
government on a devolution deal encompassing any future Growth Deal allocations so it can forward 
fund investment in much needed infrastructure. 

The opportunities at a local level

Skills changes 
1.18 The link between the needs of business and the skills system and is considered to be 

underdeveloped at a national and regional level. Given the role that Local Government plays in 
understanding its local economy, education providers and business leadership, there is room for a 
brokerage service to connect colleges, schools and businesses. While this may be devolution-neutral 
to a certain extent, the changes that could be brought about in the system could make a major 
difference to skills outcomes. 

1 Conservative manifesto specifically highlights it ‘will continue to support adoption of elected 
mayors, but will not support them for rural counties’. 

Page 12



1.19 One of Gloucestershire’s specific challenges is an aging workforce and a vulnerability to retain young 
talent in part due to house prices and access to the housing market. 

1.20 Under Grow Gloucestershire, there are a number of priorities for youth employment to inspire 
young people to drive ambition, develop skills that are appropriate for the workplace and increase 
the number of young people taking part in work experience. This current strategy is consistent with 
the UK need to deliver more young people into the labour market with the skills, attitudes and 
knowledge to offset an aging working population and raise employability levels. While it focuses less 
on attainment and raising skills levels, the development of soft or functional skills remains a key 
driver. 

1.21 Skills policy in the main current political manifestos all focus on delivering apprenticeships, and a 
more central role of business. One key difference however is the emphasis on investment in 
technical skills (Conservative) as opposed to further education (Labour) to fill the productivity gap. 

Business Rates changes
1.22 There are anticipated changes to the Business Rates system coming in for the 2019 / 20 financial 

year. The new system is expected to positively incentivise areas and reduce exclusion of areas 
perceived as high risk. The Local Government Finance Bill is proposing to provide the Secretary of 
State discretion to designate pools of authorities for the purposes. Local authorities will continue to 
be encouraged to come forward with their own proposals for pooling, but there is a risk that 
authorities will be compelled to pool.

1.23 The current Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool (GBRP) was set up to maximise the business rate 
income retained within the County and to support economic growth within the LEP area. The 
Government have indicated that they would welcome applications under the new proposals from 
councils to participate in the further business rates pilots in 2018/19, in areas without a devolution 
deal, including two-tier council areas. This may be through a Local Growth Zone, akin to an 
Enterprise Zone to ensure authorities to keep a proportion of the growth in business rates income 
outside of the rates retention system for a specified number of years. Given Gloucestershire’s co-
terminus public sector boundary, it would be well placed to put itself forward for a pilot project. 

Local Enterprise Partnerships
1.24 Created in 2011 and based on economic functional areas, there are currently 38 LEPs covering 

England. In March 2017, Northamptonshire LEP merged with South East Midlands LEP to form a 
single LEP recognising cross over of boundaries to create a larger geography. GFirst was established 
to support growth in the Gloucestershire economy. 

1.25 With regards to the future of LEPs, the main party manifestos have mixed references to the future of 
LEPs. 

1.26 The Conservative manifesto commits to giving statutory responsibility to LEPs by ‘backing them in 
law’. It also highlights that local councils and local enterprise partnerships will be further 
empowered to improve local growth and public services and by putting employers at the centre of 
reforms to deal with local skills shortages and ensure that colleges deliver the skills required by local 
businesses through Skills Advisory Panels.

Page 13



1.27 The single Liberal Democrat reference to LEPs in their manifesto highlights that they would 
encourage Local Authorities and LEPs to work together with businesses, universities and business 
hubs. Their ideas revolve around raising money to incentivise clustering by businesses with particular 
specialisations.

1.28 There is no reference to LEPs in the Labour manifesto.

Infrastructure
1.29 There is a significant requirement for infrastructure in Gloucestershire, estimated to be over £400m 

alone from projects featuring in the Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Pipeline (GIIP). The 
highest value infrastructure investments in the Gloucestershire which will support long-term 
sustainable growth in the region include:

 A417 (Missing Link part of SRN) 

 Missing Link improvement to improve access between M5 to M4 (This scheme is 
within the Government’s Road Investment Strategy for scheme development during 
the RIS1 period, with construction during the RIS2 period.)

 Upgrade of Cheltenham Spa rail and Gloucester rail stations

 West of Cheltenham relief road

 Upgrade of primary radial bus corridors between Cheltenham and Gloucester to 
enable bus rapid transit between primary urban centres and major employers 
including access to multimodal interchange sites accessed from SRN

 M5 Junction 10 all movements junction improvement

Growth Hubs 
1.30 A central part of the LEP service to businesses, Growth Hubs are designed to support start-up and 

growing businesses with a range of products and services that are relevant to the local business 
base. The GFirst Growth Hub, assuming it fulfils its plans is anticipated to generate £135 million GVA 
and over 14,800 jobs by 2021.

1.31 LEPs are in full operational control of Growth Hubs and use them to support their Strategic Economic 
Plans. Growth hubs are encouraged to take an evidence based approach to service delivery in 
support of business start-up and growth. The uncertainty of EU funding, much of which is directed to 
deliver complementary services from the Growth Hub, will be a key consideration for their 
sustainability.

1.32 Department for Business is currently conducting a high-level central review of Growth Hub policy, 
using the business-level intervention data collected from growth hub CRM systems. LEPs are also 
recommended to continually evaluate the service offer and quality of provision on a regular basis. 
The Phase 2 evaluation of the GFirst Growth Hub is due to take place this year and it will be a 
particularly important review given the significant changes to funding and sustainability. 

Page 14



Broadband

1.33 There have been many initiatives to improve coverage across the country and stimulate investment 
in broadband. Infrastructure providers has been reluctant in the past to invest where there was no 
commercial argument to do so. 

1.34 Gloucestershire has taken a proactive stance to resolving issues of broadband coverage by managing 
public subsidy to encourage infrastructure providers to invest. Under the Fastershire programme, 
Faster broadband is being rolled out across Herefordshire and Gloucestershire between now and the 
end of 2018. It has reached 97% coverage with the last phase of investment and is set to reach 
100%. A soon to be announced call to bid through European Agricultural Fund for Rural 
Development (EAFRD) will enable further support to rural communities.

1.35 With regards to mobile technology, Gloucestershire has made representations to the National 
Infrastructure Commission to promote advanced coverage across the whole Shire. 

Leading Places

1.36 The Leading Places pilot is a joint project developed in partnership with the Local Government 
Association (LGA), the Higher Education Funding Council for England (HEFCE) and Universities UK 
(UUK). It seeks to establish more effective place-based collaborative leadership and forge 
collaboration to deliver civic and economic success.

1.37 The specific Gloucestershire conversation has been considering what leadership role the University 
should have in relation to growth and understand how partners can work together to support 
economic development and growth. 

1.38 Some of the key points raised in the discussions relate to the need for the University to create a 
strong brand identity and specialisms that it can focus on. This could be delivered through 
strengthening research and development functions in support of the knowledge-based economy 
promoting a clear reference to the local business base, sector location quotient and growth areas. 

Page 15



Source: http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/SN07029/SN07029.pdf 

Page 16

http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/SN07029/SN07029.pdf


Page 1 of 4

GFirst LEP Update for GEGJC meeting 21st June 2017

Prepared by Mally Findlater (Programme Manager GFirst LEP)

Gloucestershire Growth Deal

1. Current project funding

The current status of the projects that are going through the approval and funding process is as follows:

Stage of Process Project/s
Outline Business Cases 
Approved

All

Conditional funding letters 
issued

All for GD1 & 2. GD3 projects have not received conditional 
funding letters. There is no immediate requirement for this.

Due diligence commenced 18 projects: GREEN; STEM projects x 4; Airport; Blackfriars; Cyber 
Skills; Growth Hub expansion; Growth Hub Network; Berkeley 
Bridges; Cinderford spine road; RAU rural innovation centre; 
Gloucester Central Transport Hub; Metz Way; A40 Benhall bus lane; 
A40 Over Roundabout, Cinderford New College campus

Due diligence completed 18 projects: GREEN; STEM projects x 4; airport; Blackfriars; Cyber; 
Growth Hub expansion; Growth Hub Network; Berkeley Bridges; 
Cinderford spine road; RAU rural innovation centre; Gloucester 
Central Transport Hub; Metz Way; A40 Benhall bus lane; A40 Over 
Roundabout, Cinderford New College campus

Due diligence completed but 
project not being progressed

1 project: A40 Benhall bus lane

GFirst LEP Investment Panel 
review of project due 
diligence findings and 
recommendation to the LEP 
Board

4/4/17: No Growth Deal projects
6/6/17: Cancelled

GFirst LEP Board approval for 
funding agreement

17 projects: GREEN; STEM projects x 4; airport; Blackfriars; Cyber 
Skills; Growth Hub Expansion; Growth Hub Network; Berkeley 
Bridges; Cinderford spine road; RAU rural innovation centre; 
Gloucester Central Transport Hub; Metz Way/Abbeymead Avenue; 
A40 Over Roundabout, Cinderford New College campus

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Page 2 of 4

2. Project reporting (Q4 16/17)

Current figures are reported alongside figures in brackets, which are those reported at the previous 
GEGJC meeting:

 the out turn from the current Growth Deal programme to date is £35.45m (prev £19.01m). 
which results in a cumulative under spend on the programme to March 2017 of £5.232m 

 the actual cumulative total spend (including direct leverage/match) is £28.99m (prev £23.11m) 

 Forecast Direct Match funding declared to date £52.78m (prev £38.41m). Higher than expected 
match (public sector) from GREEN and Blackfriars projects puts us well ahead of forecast 
already. Expected that all direct match will have occurred by 2021

 the total leverage (direct and follow-on) declared by the projects (ie includes some committed 
but not yet spent) is £75.27m (prev £64m). Currently forecast for total leverage is £313m, with 
strong private sector investment in GREEN, Airport & Blackfriars (eg  Cityheart development of 
295 student units)

 Jobs – DIRECT jobs to date 1176 (prev 508) associated directly with projects. Wider jobs impacts 
to be assessed periodically. Jobs to date mostly from Growth Hub activity, GREEN and 
Gloucester Airport.

The following documents have been provided in addition to the summary above. These are also 
published on the LEP website 

http://www.gfirstlep.com/Projects-in-Gloucestershire/How-are-we-doing~q~/

 Forward Look: Programme planning tool, supports resource planning, ensures that the due 
diligence assessor, the investment panel, the Joint Committee and the LEP Board are aware of 
future activity. Updated Quarterly  (Appendix 1)

 Projects Summary: Forecast outputs from each project, the total for each metric, and a 
comparison to the Growth Deal. Updated Quarter (Appendix 2)

 Dashboard: Visual representation of summary data including progress against annual forecasts. 
Updated Quarterly (Appendix 3)

3. Process for re-allocation of Growth Deal Funds

The following detail is to notify the Joint Committee of the process that is being implemented, and to 
make the members aware of their potential involvement in ‘exceptional circumstances’ 

At the mid-way point in the delivery of the Growth Deal funds, the LEP (with the Accountable Body) 
have commenced the process for the re-allocation of Growth Programme funds that have become, or 
will become, available due to projects being withdrawn or needing less than their indicative funding 

Page 18

http://www.gfirstlep.com/Projects-in-Gloucestershire/How-are-we-doing~q~/


Page 3 of 4

allocation. 

The process for this was approved by the Board on 24.04.17. Full details are available on the LEP website 
under Agenda Item 8 – Reallocation of Growth Deal Funds : http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/About-
Us/The-Board/

The timetable for this process is attached (Appendix 4)

The Opportunity:  

Following due process, and having confirmed the current position with all projects in the programme 
(both those with funding agreements and those which have indicative funding allocations only) the 
detail of the opportunity will be determined by the Programme Management Group with approval and 
endorsement sought from the GFirst LEP Board at the August Board meeting. This will take into account 
the commitment to Government to spend to profile and also the responsibility that Gloucestershire 
County Council as the Accountable Body for the fund, has for the programme’s cash flow and fund 
management.

Identification of potential projects for consideration:

Projects will be identified through existing project identification mechanisms and will not be published 
as an open call, as would be the case for the development of a new programme submission to 
Government for further rounds of Growth Deal funding.  

Projects that were included in the most recent Growth Deal (Round 3) bid to Government, but failed to 
be funded will automatically be invited to apply for the opportunity. This represents the current pipeline 
that has been agreed through due process . Promoters would be allowed to revise the projects if 
necessary, but would not be invited to submit any other proposals. Projects in this category are:

Cirencester Enterprise Quarter , Gloucester Station, Cinderford Regeneration, Eco Park and Sports 
Stadium, Airport Expansion, Littlecombe Housing, Centre for Food and Drink and Brimscombe 
Housing.

 http://www.gfirstlep.com/Projects-in-Gloucestershire/Important-Documents/  Growth Deal 3 
submission

Joint Committee should note that the prioritised list in the bid to Government for Growth Deal 3 
(GD3) was selected from a long list that included projects put forward from the Gloucestershire 
Infrastructure Investment Plan (GIIP) developed by the Joint Committee. The expectation is that the 
new funding opportunity created will be matched to a project or projects from the GD3 submission 
that were not funded. However, the process allows for projects that were not in the GD3 submission 
to be considered under ‘exceptional circumstances’

Exceptional Circumstances:

It is recognised that there may be projects that have been developed since the last pipeline process, that 

Page 19

http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/About-Us/The-Board/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/About-Us/The-Board/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/Projects-in-Gloucestershire/Important-Documents/


Page 4 of 4

are so exceptional, that it is desirable for them to be considered.  To be considered ‘exceptional’ they 
will have the potential to deliver or accelerate outstanding growth for the county. They will also need to 
be able to demonstrate their ability to deliver within the budget and time line identified in the 
opportunity. Suggestions for a very limited number of projects in this category are invited from the 
GFirst LEP Board and the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee. GEGJC sponsored 
projects in this category are most likely to already feature on the GIIP list, but to have changed or 
progressed since the GD3 process to such a degree that they should now be considered.

 Joint Committee members who have a project that they feel is in this category, which they wish to 
sponsor, should:

 Present a clearly articulated case to support the status of the new project as ‘exceptional’
 Inform the LEP and Accountable Body by email to mally.findlater@gfirstlep.com and 

claire.edwards@gloucestershire.gov.uk
 Inform the Joint Committee representatives on the LEP Board (currently Mark Hawthorne and 

Steve Jordan) of their intention to sponsor these projects.

Initial Assessment Process :

Once the list of projects for consideration has been collated, the process for selection will be consistent 
with the Assurance Framework. (Annex D from point 2) 

http://www.gfirstlep.com/Home/Assurance-Framework/

The LEP Board would retain the final decision making powers 

(Annex D: 3B ‘LEP Board selection and prioritisation’) 

Key dates for the Joint Committee:

21/06/17: Notification of process and clarification of GEGJC involvement

10/08/17: Specific details of the opportunity available and communicated, invitations for submissions 
invited from GD3 projects, LEP Board and GEGJC

06/09/17: LEP update to Joint Committee

11/09/17: Deadline for submissions

10/10/17: LEP Board decision

12/10/17: LEP update to Joint Committee by email

 

Mally Findlater 09/06/2017

Page 20

mailto:mally.findlater@gfirstlep.com
mailto:claire.edwards@gloucestershire.gov.uk
http://www.gfirstlep.com/Home/Assurance-Framework/


Growth Deal Projects 'Forward Look' Key  Milestones

(Based on latest  information at time of publication) Final business case preparation and due diligence/assessment

May‐17 Investment panel/board review/decision

Rev 4 Funding agreement (subject to board approval)

Formal project launch 

Notes Start of construction/implementation

All planned projects are still subject to  investment appraisal and LEP Board approval 

GD3 Projects to be included when initial timings are available  FY 2017/18 Q4 FY 2018/19 Q1 FY 2018/19 Q2 FY 2018/19 Q3

LGF 2019 ‐2021

Project Masterlist Category Summary Status £m's Jan  Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan‐Mar Apr‐Jun Jul‐Sept Oct‐Dec Future dates

Growth Hub Expansion
Business 
Support

Expanded Core Growth Hub and New 
Business School @ UoG

Construction under way on site. £5.000 Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Est Completion

Growth Hub Network
Business 
Support

Network of Growth Hubs across the 
county

New CRM is use, new website 
launched April 2017

£5.000 Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Complete roll‐out 
mid 2019

Farm 491
Business 
Support

Agri‐tech innovation and business 
incubator centre (RAU)

Phase 1 (Harn Hill) underway, 
main campus due 2018 

£2.920 Est Completion

Glos Airport
Business 
Support

Access road to open up land for 
development

Project complete, first new 
build under way.

£0.550

Retail Entrepenuer
Business 
Support

Retail skills & digital high street pilot 
scheme

Scheme & Business case being 
developed

£0.400 Inv Panel & 
Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Est Completion

Cheltenham Cyber Park *
Enabling 

Infrastructure
Road and other infrastructure to 
facilitate Cheltenham Cyber Park 

Early planning stages £22.000 Submit Business 
case

Construction start 
summer 2019

Cinderford Northern Link Road
Enabling 

Infrastructure

Access road enabling new college 
campus and first phase of 

development of Northern Qtr, 

WIP, road to open Aug 2017, 
landscaping Oct/Nov

£3.800 Est 
Completion

A40 Longford Traffic Scheme Housing
Traffic mitigation to release a strategic 

housing site
Early planning stages £4.530 Inv Panel & 

Board

Blackfriars & Quayside Housing
De‐risking and preparation of site for 

development
WIP, site to be 'shovel‐ready' 

May 2018.
£4.130 Est Completion

Advanced Renewable Energy 
Resource Centre (ARERC)

Innovation
Renewable energy research & 

comunications centre, Berkeley Green
Business Case being updated, 

seeking early approval
£4.000 Inv Panel Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project Launch
Construction 

start
Completion Sept 

2019

GREEN Skills Centre Skills
Gloucs Renewable Energy, 

Engineering & Nuclear Skills Centre
Building complete, full 
operation in Sept 2017

£5.000

Berkley Green Cyber Security 
Centre

Skills
Cyber Security skills centre, dual 

location UoG & Berkely
WIP, planned to open Aug/Sept 

2017
£3.000 Est 

Completion

Cinderford New College Campus Skills
Funding to support build of new 
Gloscol campus in Cinderford

Funding agreed, construction to 
start June 2017

£2.600 Due Diligence
Funding 

Agreement
Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Est Completion

Gloucestershire STEM centres Skills
STEM teaching facility upgrades at 5 

sites across Gloucs.
Complete, now in delivery 

phase.
£2.096

Elmbridge (Tail End Major DfT 
scheme)

Transport
Major roundabout upgrade A40, key 

strategic route.
Under construction, est 
completion Sept 2017

£9.070 Est 
Completion

Gloucester Transport Hub Transport
New Transport Hub for Gloucester & 

highways mods
WIP, due to open summer 2018 £6.400 Est Completion

A419 Corridor Improvements Transport
Junction improvements along A419 
between M5 J13 and Stonehouse

Draft business case submitted 
for initial assessment

£4.360 Inv Panel Board
Funding 

Agreement
Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Completion late 
2020

A40 Over Roundabout  Transport
Widening approaches to the 

roundabout & provision of a third 
circulatory lane 

Detailed design & planning in 
progress. Start on Site Nov 17

£2.230
Funding 

Agreement
Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Est 
Completion

Gloucester South West By Pass Transport
Widening of Llanthony Road section 

of South West bypass. 
Scheme & Business case being 

developed
£2.000 Due Diligence Inv Panel Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project Launch
Construction 

start
Completion mid 

2019

A38 Berkeley Bridges Transport Replacement Northbound bridge
WIP, due to complete June 

2017
£1.990 Est 

Completion

B4063 Staverton Bridge Junction Transport
Upgrade to the B4063/Old Gloucester 

Road junction
Scheme & Business case being 

developed
£1.600 Inv Panel & Board 

Q4 18/19
Completion end 

2020

Cheltenham Spa Railway Station Transport
Improvement to station forecourt & 

additional parking
GWR confirmed as promoter, 

revised scheme agreed. 
£1.497 Inv Panel Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project Launch
Construction 

start
Est Completion

A38 B4066 access to Berkley Transport Junction upgrade A38/B4066 
Scheme & Business case being 

developed
£1.150 Inv Panel Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Completion mid 
2018

Lydney Transport Strategy Transport
Local junction improvements and 

cycle access
Scheme & Business case being 

developed
£1.000 Inv Panel Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project Launch
Construction 

start
Completion mid 

2019

St Barnabas Roundabout Transport Roundabout upgrade 
Scheme & Business case being 

developed
£1.000 Inv Panel & Board 

Q4 18/19
Completion end 

2020

Abbeymead /Metz Way Transport
Junction & Pedestrian Crossing 

upgrades (smart signals)
Fully approved, work to start 

July‐Aug 17.
£0.500

Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Est 
Completion

* DfT 'Retained' scheme currently Sub‐Total (committed) £97.823

Agreed Govt Profile £101.716

Variance £3.893 To be re‐allocated based on agreed process

Project scoping, consultation, traffic modelling etc

Final Business case/Due 
Diligence

Scheme & Business Case being developed

Final Business case/Due 
Diligence

Final Business case/Due 
Diligence

Final Business case/Due 
Diligence

Final Business case/Due 
Diligence

Final Business case/Due 
Diligence

Scheme & Business Case being developed

Under construction, completion estimated summer 2018

Under construction estimated completion SeptOct 2017

Full business case being developed

Under construction estimated completion Jun 2017

Scheme & Business Case being developed

Under construction estimated completion May/June 2017

Under Construction completion due May 2018

Project now in delivery phase

Under construction completion July 2017

Project now in delivery phase

FY 2016/17 Q4

20182017

FY 2017/18 Q1 FY 2017/18 Q2 FY 2017/18 Q3

Harnhill site Under Construction, main campus completion due Mar/April 2018

Project now in delivery phase

Develop Business Case

Project scoping, consultation, traffic modelling etc DfT assessment

Final Business case/Due Diligence

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Growth Deal Projects Summary

May-17

Current Forecasts to end of programme (March 2021) with Actuals where available

Project Name Growth Fund Category Homes Total jobs
Private 

Leverage £m's
Public Sector 
Leverage £m's

Commercial 
Floorspace m2 

Employment 
Land

Skills 
Capital m2 App'ships

BCR (Road 
schemes)

Growth Hub Amalgamated 10,000,000£     Business Support 0 6644 £0.05 £19.5 1450 0 3800 0 N/A

Farm 491 2,920,000£          Business Support 0 207 £0.8 £0.0 1380 0 0 0 N/A

Glos Airport 550,000£              Business Support 0 106 £9.7 £0.0 12000 6.8 0 0 N/A

Retail Entrepreneur 400,000£              Business Support 0 50 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 N/A

Cheltenham Cyber Park * 22,000,000£    Enabling Infrastructure 500 7500 £50.0 £0.0 40000 45 0 0 N/A

Cinderford Northern Link Road 3,800,000£          Enabling Infrastructure 110 0 £0.0 £5.3 0 2 0 0 N/A

A40 Longford Traffic Mitigation * 4,530,000£      Housing 1300 630 £3.3 £0.0 5000 8.3 0 0 TBC

Blackfriars & Quayside 4,130,000£          Housing 250 45 £85.0 £12.0 4000 2.5 0 0 N/A

Advanced Renewables  Centre 4,000,000£          Innovation 0 0 £3.0 £0.8 2000 0 0 0 N/A

GREEN Skills Centre 5,000,000£       Skills 0 125 £19.5 £20.6 0 10.7 4401 300 N/A

Berkeley Green Cyber Security Centre 3,000,000£          Skills 0 127 £4.0 £2.0 1461 0 1461 213 N/A

Cinderford  ‐ New Gloscol Campus 2,600,000£      Skills 55 150 £0.0 £12.5 0 0 6000 0 N/A

Gloucestershire STEM centres 2,096,000£       Skills 0 0 £0.0 £3.8 0 0 6141 1064 N/A

Elmbridge (Tail‐end Major road scheme) 9,070,000£       Transport 0 0 £0.0 £5.2 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester Transport Hub (Kings Quarter)  6,400,000£          Transport 100 0 £40.0 £8.8 1000 0 0 0 N/A

A419 Corridor Improvements 4,360,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

A40 Roundabout & Highnam Lodge 2,230,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.1 £0.0 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester South West By Pass 2,000,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.1 £2.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Berkeley Bridge Replacement 1,990,000£       Transport 0 0 £0.0 £1.0 0 0 0 0 5

B4063 Staverton Bridge Junction 1,600,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Cheltenham Spa Railway Station 1,497,000£          Transport 0 0 £1.8 £0.2 0 0 0 0 TBC

A38 B4066 access to Berkeley 1,150,000£          Transport 0 0 £1.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Lydney Transport Strategy 1,000,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

St Barnabas Roundabout 1,000,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Abbeymead /Metz Way 500,000£              Transport 0 0 £1.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 4

Re‐allocated project(s) 3,873,000£      TBA 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Forecast Totals* 101,696,000£  2315 15584 £219.4 £93.7 68291 75.3 21803 1577

Growth Deal (1,2 & 3) Commitment 2255 14280 N/A 75.3 N/A 1014

* for GD3 schemes includes outcomes post 2021

£285.8

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Growth Deal Progress Dashboard (with GD3)

Q4 16/17 (to 31-03-17)

Out turn of funds Totals (£m's)

Govt Profile (inc DfT schemes) £101.72

Plan £101.62

Actual (to Q4 16/17) £35.45

Actual Spend vs Out turn Totals (£m's)

Plan £101.62

Actual (to Q4 16/17) £28.99

Jobs (direct & indirect) 15/16 & 16/1 Totals 

Plan 15584

Actual (to Q4 16/17) 1176

Direct Match (committed) Totals (£m's)

Forecast £70.41

Actual £52.78

Total Leverage £m's Totals (£m's)

Forecast £313.11

Actual £75.27

Housing Unit starts Totals 

Forecast 2315

Actual 0

Jobs to date mostly from Growth Hub activity, GREEN and Gloucs Airport.

Higher than expected match (public sector) from GREEN and Blackfriars projects puts us well ahead of forecast already. Expected that all direct match will have occurred by 2021

Currently forecast for total leverage is £260m, with strong private sector investment in GREEN, Airport & Blackfriars (eg Cityheart planning app for 295 student units) 

295 Student units at Blackfriars (equivalent to 49 homes) will start Q1 17/18. 

2015/16

£15.47m

2016/17

£15.76m

2017/18

£10.63m

2018/19

£16.82m

£75.27m

£15.5m

2015/16

£25.8m

2016/17 2017/18

£43m £67m

£18.385m £22.593m

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

£14.859m

2020/21

£22.593m£23.802m£13.170m

2017/18

£13.355m

2018/19

£35.45m

£10.699m

£13.344m £10.323m £18.385m

2015/16 2016/17

£13.170m £29.150m

2019/20

£20.483m

2018/19

109 176

2019/20

730

2020/21 Post 2021

1300

Note - planned spend for GD3 schemes currently same as funding profile until more detail is known

2019/20

£4.26m

2020/21

£6.72m

£52.78m

£28.99m

£10.323m

513

2017/18

1368

2018/19

1845

2019/20

2071

2020/21

2457

Post 2021 

7330

1176

£13.170m £23.802m £13.344m

2018/19 2019/20

£68.9m

2020/21

£63m

Post 2021

£27m

Page 1 of 2

P
age 25



Growth Deal Progress Dashboard (with GD3)

Q4 16/17 (to 31-03-17)
Apprenticeship starts Totals 

Forecast 1577

Actual 120

Skills - floorspace Totals m2

Forecast 21803

Actual 10542

Commercial Floorspace Totals m2

Forecast 68291

Actual 4000

Employment Land Total Ha

Forecast 75.3

Actual 19

Skills - Qualifications Totals 

Forecast 4960

Actual 0

First new hangars in build at Gloucs Airport, will achieve 3000 by June 2017. Progress bar to show work progress on site.

First Qualification outputs due in June 2017, will be agreed at the annual reviews in Sept/Oct 2017.

Apprenticeships directly associated with Growth Deal Projects only, ie GREEN, Gloscol, Cirencester & Berkeley Cyber Centre

GREEN skills centre, Gloscol new engineering & construction centres & Cirencester & Hartpury STEM centres opened 2016, Berkeley Cyber Skills Centre 2017.

430 450

2019/202017/18

120

100 340

2018/192016/17

257

2020/21

2018/19

9800

2016/17

3000

2017/18

7761

2018/19

5530

2019/20

6000

2020/21

11000

Post 2021

35000

2016/17

514

2017/18

900

2018/19

1103

2019/20

1176

2020/21

1267

2016/17

10542

10542

2017/18

1461

Large proportion (45ha) of the employment land created is associated with Cheltenham Cyber Park

19

2015/16

11

2016/17

9

2017/18

3

2019/20

3

2020/21

50.3

Page 2 of 2

P
age 26



GFirst LEP: Reallocation timetable for Growth Deal funding     Final 31.05.17 

Information for Promoters, LEP Board and other stakeholders. 

MF – Mally Findlater (Programme Manager) 

DO – David Owen (Chief Executive) 

AB – Accountable Body (GCC) 

Process Activity who when Completed 
by 

Notes 

Identify the 
opportunity: 
value and annual 
profile. 
 

Communication with Projects which 
have not yet progressed through due 
diligence to a funding agreement 
requesting full status update by 
30.06.17.  
Objective: to establish the full total 
funds that will be available for 
reallocation 

MF & 
project 
promoters 

31.05.17 30.06.17 All current projects with indicative 
Growth Deal funding, not yet confirmed, 
and for which there isn’t a funding 
agreement in place required to confirm 
the status of their project.  
To establish if: a) on track, no change b) 
project to be withdrawn c) project 
variation that necessitates LEP review 
 

 Collation of responses, and where 
necessary, LEP review. 
Objective: Full information, including 
RAG rating, available for the LEP Board  
08.08.17 
 

MF 01.07.17 – 
31.07.17 

31.07.17 If required, LEP staff or Board members 
will review projects in detail, working 
closely with the promoters 

 LEP Board review of unfunded projects 
incl. RAG rating. Final decision about 
which projects  will have indicative 
funding removed either voluntarily or 
enforced (if any) 
 

LEP Board 08.08.17 08.08.17 Final decision 

 The specific details of the ‘opportunity’ 
for reallocation of funds confirmed (to 

MF & AB 10.08.17 tbc 10.08.17 tbc  

P
age 27



include the value and profile) 

      

Communication 
of the 
opportunity 

All projects in GD3 bid that were 
unsuccessful made aware of 
reallocation process 
 

DO / MF May   

 GFirst Board & GEGJC made aware of 
reallocation process and timetable, 
including opportunity to nominate 
‘exceptional’ projects.  

MF / DO June 2017   

 Final clarification of the value and 
profile of the opportunity to GD3 
projects, LEP Board & GEGJC 

MF & AB 10.08.17 10.08.17 tbc Emails to GD3 promoters, Board, Joint 
Committee including deadline for 
submission 

 Interim communication with all 
potential projects 

 

MF June - August   

      

Process  All applicants to submit revised Business 
cases or new Business cases (if 
‘exceptional’ through Board or GEGJC) 

Project 
promoters 

August/ 
September 

11.09.17 tbc  

 Board Sub Group process to review 
applications and agree prioritised list 
using standard process (see assurance 
framework) to recommend to the LEP 
Board 

LEP Board, 
AB & LEP 
staff 

September 27.09.17 tbc  

 Final decision at LEP Board LEP Board 10/10/17   

      

 

P
age 28



Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool Update AGENDA NO: 

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee, 21 June 2017

Report author David Stanley – Accountancy Manager (Section 151 Officer)
Stroud District Council
Tel: 01453 754100
Email: david.stanley@stroud.gov.uk

Background 
documents

None

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

N/A 

Main consultees Gloucestershire Chief Financial Officers

Planned dates N/A

Purpose of report To update members of the committee on the 2016/17 financial performance 
and 2017/18 forecast of the Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool.

Recommendations

The Committee:
1. Note the outturn position with the Pool for 2016/17 and the initial forecast 

for 2017/18

Reasons for 
recommendations

The Business Rates Pool outturn for 2016/17 was strong and ensured 
losses incurred in 2014/15 by pool members were repaid.  Distribution of 
the remaining surplus is outlined in the report  The Pool Management Team 
has taken steps to mitigate the risks of any future losses but the Committee 
needs to be mindful of the current risks.

Resource 
Implications

There are no resource implications to implementing this recommendation 
however, despite the mitigating action taken, Pool members must be aware 
of the risks associated with Pooling and make appropriate provision within 
their individual authorities.

Page 29

Agenda Item 8

mailto:david.stanley@stroud.gov.uk


Background 
1. The Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool (GBRP) was set up to maximise the 

business rate income retained within the County and to support economic growth within 
the area of the Local Enterprise Partnership. 

2. In 2013/14, the first year of operation, the Pool reported a surplus of £0.775m of which 
£95k was paid to the Strategic Economic Development Fund supporting the work of the 
Joint Committee.  In 2014/15, the pool suffered a significant loss due to the impact of 
backdated appeals on rateable values and in particular, the successful backdated 
appeal by Virgin Media, the largest valued business in Tewkesbury. The final pool 
position for 2014/15 published a deficit of £2.3m following a safety net payment to 
Tewkesbury of £3.9m.

3. The 2015/16 outturn position for the Pool reported a surplus of £1.129m. This is 
predominantly due to an improved position across the majority pool members (in 
particular Stroud, Gloucester and Cotswold) and the consequential impact of the lower 
pool levy rate 

4. After accounting for a safety net payment to Tewkesbury of £252k, the remaining 
balance of £878k was distributed back to pool members pro-rata to 2014/15’s deficit in 
accordance with the governance arrangements.

5. With the ongoing risk associated with the VM issue and following the Committee’s 
agreement, the Pool was dissolved and a new Pool was formed excluding Tewkesbury 
from April 2016 and this arrangement remains in place for 2017/18.

Outturn position for the Pool 2016/17
6. Following the completion of the Government returns which set the level of Business 

Rates income for each authority for the 2016/17 year, it was estimated in January 2016 
that an additional £2.516m will be retained in Gloucestershire as a result of pooling.

7. During the year, the committee was provided with updated forecasts indicating potential 
retention of £1.983m (September 2016) and £2.382m (December 2016).

8. The outturn position was at the mid-point of these forecasts with £2.138m of additional 
business rates income retained within Gloucestershire.  After repayment to pool 
members of the balance remaining from 2014/15 pool losses (£933k), a total of 
£1.205m was available for distribution in accordance with the pool governance 
arrangements.  20% of the surplus is set aside for the Strategic Economic Development 
Fund (SEDF) with the 2016/17 contribution being £241k.  Therefore, the cumulative 
amount of funding generated by the pool for the SEDF since 2013/14 is £336k.

Forecast for the Pool 2017/18
9. As discussed in the March 2017 report to the committee, the initial forecast for 2017/18 

is based on the NNDR1 return to Government which sets the level of business rates 
income for each authority for 2017/18, as estimated in January 2017.  This estimates 
that an additional £4.023m will be retained in Gloucestershire.  This is due to changes 
in pool levy rate (reducing from 8.47% to 3.43%) as a result of the new valuation list 
and the subsequent revised tariff and top-up figures.

10.Whilst the level of additional retained business rates income is encouraging, there is 
considerable risk to business rates income at the start of a new valuation period.  As 

Page 30



members may recall, new rateable values came into force on 01 April 2017, with 
significant changes to individual business rates bills as a result.  The March 2017 
budget made some changes to certain business rates bills that will no doubt impact on 
the final amount of retained business rates income for the year.

11. It is likely that there will be significant appeals against the new valuations and we will 
need to see how these affect the level of retained business rates income over time.

12.Members may be aware that NHS Trusts are continuing to look to be classified as 
charitable bodies and therefore qualify for mandatory charitable business rates relief of 
80% of their business rates.  This issue has recently come to the fore again, with 
several local authorities receiving correspondence from agents acting on behalf of NHS 
Trusts.  In the event they are successful with this application, it would have a significant 
impact on the pool in future years.

13.Therefore, the estimate of £4.023m highlighted in paragraph 9 should be viewed in light 
of the risks outlined above.  An updated forecast will be provided at the November 
GEGJC meeting following consideration by the Gloucestershire CFOs.

100% Business Rates Retention
14.As highlighted in the March 2017 update report, the Government responded to the 

initial consultation on 100% Business Rates Retention and issued a further consultation 
document on the design of the reformed business rates system in February 2017, with 
the consultation ending on 03 May 2017.

15.The document set out the proposed timeline and considers some of the design issues 
such as reset periods, tier splits and managing appeals risk.  The Government have 
stated that subject to parliamentary approval, their aim is to introduce the new system 
for the 2019/20 financial year, although given the recent General Election result this 
may be subject to change.

16.Changes around the way Business Rates Pools are designated and operate, proposals 
for Local Growth Zones, and other technical aspects of rates retention were set out in 
the consultation.

17.The Government also indicated that they would welcome applications from councils to 
participate in the further business rates pilots in 2018/19, in areas without a devolution 
deal, including two-tier council areas.

18.Alongside rates retention the government is also undertaking the Fair Funding Review, 
which will establish the funding baselines under 100% Business Rates Retention.  This 
review will consider a number of issues that will lead to updated needs assessments 
and has the potential to redistribute significant funding across the local government 
sector.

100% Business Rates Pilots
19.As discussed briefly at the March 2017 committee meeting, the Government have 

indicated that 2-tier authority areas would be able to make an application to be a 
Business Rates Pilot area prior to the roll-out of 100% retained business rates.

20.Under a Business Rates Pilot, member authorities would roll-in existing funding streams 
(Revenue Support Grant, Rural Services Grant, and potentially a variety of other 

Page 31



funding streams and responsibilities) to allow for a greater proportion of business rates 
to be retained.

21.Gloucestershire CFOs have engaged Pixel Financial Management to help support 
.Gloucestershire in the development of a 100% business rates pilot.  Pixel will provide 
initial financial modelling to establish the potential benefits of the pilot, to advise on the 
governance arrangements under a two-tier pilot, and be involved in potential 
discussions with DCLG.

22.At the time of writing, there is no clear indication from government of the likely timetable 
for submitting applications for two-tier pilots, or the process of how those applications 
will be reviewed and assessed.

23.Gloucestershire CFOs will undertake detailed modelling over the coming weeks, with 
an update to the committee likely in September as to the risks and rewards likely for 
Gloucestershire.

LEP Core Funding position
24.The Government has historically provided LEPs with an element of core funding, which 

needs to be matched by the locality. The maximum amount granted by Government is 
£250k and over the last 4 years the County Council has made the locality contribution 
allowing gfirst LEP to benefit from the full £500k; the Government also provides gfirst 
LEP with a further c£220k-£250k for SEP support. All of the funding is confirmed on an 
annual basis by Government.

25.As previously explained with the success of gfirst LEP in accessing Growth Funds the 
County Council has indicated its wish to see the core funding diversified and 
announced its intention to discontinue its locality match funding with effect from April 1 
2018.

26.Since the last meeting a number of discussions have taken place including between the 
7 Councils and gfirst LEP. A more detailed proposition is being produced and the aim is 
to bring an agreed position to the next GEGJC.

27.The areas where there is emerging consensus, include:

 There is a need for the locality to continue to match the Government core funding 
and that the funding partners should be diversified;

 The Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF) of the Business Rate Pool 
may provide the best route for achieving this and there would appear to be 
sufficient funds available; there is currently c£95k in the fund relating to 2013/14, a 
further c.£240k predicted from 2016/17 and the same level would be a prudent 
assumption from 2017/18.

 To mirror Government processes the locality funding should be agreed by the 
GEGJC annually.

 There should be a review of the need for on-going Core Funding during 2019/20 to 
coincide with the end of the Growth Deal period in 2021.

28.There are a number of issues where discussions continue:

 What if there were not sufficient funds in the SEDF? The overall approach 
would be for the locality to mirror the Government’s annual funding approach, so 
the GEGJC would be able to spot any forthcoming funding issues through its 

Page 32



normal monitoring processes, which would inform its annual decision to fund or not. 
Although a shortfall is not foreseen a risk share arrangement is being explored by 
way of contingency. Any shortfall in the SEDF would be met from the general pool 
or if there was not surplus in the pool from the individual Council General funds. 
The initial proposal is that any shortfall is met on a formula basis by the Councils 
and gFirst LEP; GCC (45%): District Councils (45%); gfirst LEP (10%).

 TBC is not currently in the Pool, should they make a separate contribution? 
TBC is not in the Pool at the moment because of the financial implications of the 
Virgin Media appeal. If TBC were in the pool currently  there would be a much 
reduced surplus to spend and significantly increased risk. TBC will return to the 
Pool at the earliest opportunity and the levels of development planned within the 
Borough should deliver significant benefit. gfirst LEP has secured Growth Funding 
for a number of projects in the Borough that by enabling development will generate 
significant business rates in the future. So the emerging consensus is that the use 
of the SEF for match funding the LEP would be done on a 7 Council basis; i.e. no 
separate contribution by TBC whilst it is continuing to make losses in the BRS and 
remains outside the pool.

 gFirst LEP are also asking Councils for inward investment match funding? 
gFirst LEP has the opportunity to bid for up to £1m of ESIF funding in order to 
establish inward investment services that will be essential given BREXIT. A 
proportion of match is required and the Councils contribution is estimated to be 
£90k p.a. for 3-years. As this is a recent request there is a need to understand the 
proposal in more detail and to establish whether the £90k forms part of the locality 
£250k or is in addition to this.

Risk Assessment
29.Some risk remains from the Business Rates Pool should there be significant backdated 

appeals settled.  The issue of NHS Trusts requesting charitable status is the most 
significant financial risk to the pool and pool members.

Officer Advice
30.No officer advice required

Equalities considerations
31.There are no equalities considerations associated with this decision. It is purely a 

financial consideration.

Consultation feedback
32.Each of the Business Rates Pool members has been consulted about this report and 

support the recommendation.

Performance Management/follow-up
33.A report on the performance of the Business Rates Pool will be presented to a future 

meeting of the Joint Committee.  Between now and then, Chief Financial Officers will 
keep Chief Executives and Leaders appraised of any developments 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS UPDATE FOR GEGJC AND JOINT 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

AGENDA NO: 

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) and Joint 
Scrutiny Committee

June 21st  2017

Report author Pete Carr
Pete.Carr@gloucestershire.gov.uk and Peter.Carr@gfirstlep.com

Background 
documents

Gloucestershire ESIF Strategy 
Employment and Skills Board Update provided at March GEGJC meeting

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/Our-Priorities/Our-Vision/

Main consultees Managing authorities for European Social Funding, opt-in organisations 
(Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), Big Lottery and Department 
of Work and Pensions (DWP)) and project managers in contracted 
organisations, members of Employment and Skills Board, District leaders 
and chief executives

Planned dates
Purpose of report To update the GEGJC and Joint Scrutiny Committee members on progress 

to date with European Social Fund (ESF) skills and employability projects 
and with the establishment of the Gloucestershire Employment and Skills 
Board.

Recommendations

To receive the update to the GEGJC and Joint Scrutiny Committee 
members on progress to date with European Social Fund (ESF) skills and 
employability projects and with the establishment of the Gloucestershire 
Employment and Skills Board.

Reasons for 
recommendations

 

Resource 
Implications

Page 35

Agenda Item 10

mailto:Pete.Carr@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.Carr@gfirstlep.com
http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/Our-Priorities/Our-Vision/


MAIN REPORT CONTENTS

Overview of ESF Skills and Employability  Projects in Gloucestershire for GEGJC 
and Joint Scrutiny Committee – June 2017

1. Gloucestershire ESIF Strategy

The Gloucestershire European Structural and Investment Fund (ESIF) Strategy was developed 
by GFirst LEP in conjunction with GCC and a range of other stakeholders to provide a 
framework and set of priorities for the investment of EU funding in the county for the period 
2014-2020. Owing to national delays between  the managing authorities (Department of 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) 
and the European Commission, several of the programmes started in 2016 and 2017 rather 
than in 2014. In addition to this, the Brexit decision has impacted on the timelines for delivery of 
the programmes and on the money available for them. For example, the skills projects are all 
meant to be completed between 2016 and July 2018.

The ESIF Strategy can be found at http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/Our-Priorities/Our-
Vision/ and the original rationales for each of the projects below can be found in the relevant 
sections of the Strategy.

An overview of the various EU-funded projects in the county can be found at 
http://www.gfirstlep.com/Projects-in-Gloucestershire/European-Funding/

2. ESF-funded skills projects
There are currently four skills projects funded by European Social Fund (ESF)  and contracted 
through the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in Gloucestershire, with a further 
apprenticeship project that has been put on hold by the managing authority, the Department of 
Work and Pensions (DWP) . Details of these projects are shown in the table below. 

Funding for these five projects totals £6.94m and the four contracted already will reach over 
450 SMEs and approx. 3,400 individuals.
Pete Carr, Lead Commissioner – Skills and Employment is the GCC/GFirst LEP lead for these 
projects and works with the ESFA contract managers and project leads in the contracted 
organisations to monitor and review progress and manage any required changes to the 
projects. 

The Gloucestershire ESIF Committee is the body where all EU funded projects are 
commissioned and reported back to and Cllr. Shaun Parsons sits on this Committee supported 
by Claire Edwards and Pete Carr.

If the Committee would like to receive a report on performance across the various ESF projects 
at a future meeting or presentations from any of the projects, this can be arranged.

3. Employability and social inclusion projects
In addition to the skills projects there are two further employability ESF projects, one contracted 
via DWP directly and managed by learndirect and one social inclusion and employability project 
contracted via Big Lottery and managed by a combination of Gloucestershire County  Council 
and Gloucestershire Gateway Trust (the Going the Extra Mile or GEM project). Contracts for 
these two projects are £1,215,000 and £3,100,000 respectively.

Both the employability and the social inclusion & employability projects were intended by GFirst 
LEP and GCC as initial investments in these areas of work with further ESF funding to be 

Page 36

http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/Our-Priorities/Our-Vision/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/Our-Priorities/Our-Vision/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/Projects-in-Gloucestershire/European-Funding/


invested once the success of these two projects had been monitored and reviewed. Currently, 
GFirst LEP and GCC are unable to progress these ‘next phase’ investments because of the 
Brexit decision and a lack of further information from DWP as the managing authority. 

If GFirst LEP and GCC are unable to commission these two follow-on projects then 
Gloucestershire residents will miss out on a further £3.35m investment of ESF funding. 
(£1,763,000 of ESF funding direct through the DWP employability contract and a further 
£1,597,400 via Big Lottery.) Pete Carr is trying to resolve this with DWP and Big Lottery.

From a skills and employability perspective, the additional impacts for GCC are fewer referrals 
to and from Adult Education Gloucestershire and so fewer individuals being able to get access 
to community learning and skills development opportunities to build their skills, confidence and 
employability. There are also impacts on the commissioning of suitable employability and skills 
support for a range of customers further from the labour market, including residents with 
learning difficulties and disabilities as GCC does not have further resources to invest in this.

4. Project Details

Project 
theme

Project names
Current project 
name
(Project name 
originally 
referred to in 
the GFirst LEP 
Strategic 
Economic Plan 
and ESIF 
Strategy)

Lead 
organisation

Project explanation Project 
funding

Lead 
organisation 
contact 
name

Lead 
organisation 
email

Skills: 
Expanding 
and 
improving 
work 
experience 
opportunit
ies

EDGE Project

(Employment 
Pathfinder)

South 
Gloucestershir
e and Stroud 
College

The Education Developing 
Gloucestershire’s 
Employability (EDGE) 
project is a pioneering 
scheme that aims to 
improve the employability 
skills of young people by 
working with learners, 
employers and education 
providers whilst focusing 
on the long term business 
and economic needs of 
Gloucestershire. The 
project concentrates on 
identifying the current 
skills gaps and shortages, 
with the long term aim of 
retaining talent and 
knowledge in the county.

The EDGE project will 
engage at least 450 of 
Gloucestershire’s micro, 
small and medium sized 
enterprises (SMEs) to 
ascertain how to make 

£770,000 
via 
Education 
and Skills 
Funding 
Agency 
(ESFA)

Clare Wilson 
and 
Melvin 
Packham

Clare.Wilson@sg
scol.ac.uk
mel.packham@s
gscol.ac.uk

Page 37

mailto:Clare.Wilson@sgscol.ac.uk
mailto:Clare.Wilson@sgscol.ac.uk
mailto:mel.packham@sgscol.ac.uk
mailto:mel.packham@sgscol.ac.uk


education in schools and 
colleges as well as careers 
advice and guidance, more 
relevant to the workplace. 
It will also set up work 
placements for 575 
students/pupils.

Skills: 
Increasing 
skills 
related to 
low carbon 
technologi
es in 
Gloucester
shire 

Skills Support 
for the 
Workforce: Low 
Carbon

(Skills for low 
carbon)

Serco The aim of the project is to 
provide individuals with 
the opportunities to 
develop the skills that will 
enable them to progress in 
employment. 

The project provides 
support to employers to 
take on and develop 
individuals to fill 
intermediate, technical 
and higher level skills gaps 
and shortages. Training 
will be provided to approx. 
1600 individuals.

The priority sectors for the 
delivery of the Services are 
those within Low Carbon, 
Engineering and 
Construction industries 
and their related supply 
chains. 

£2,579,250 
via 
Education 
and Skills 
Funding 
Agency 
(ESFA)

Rob Matts 
and 
Lily Matic

Rob.Matts@serc
o.com 
lily.matic@serco.
com

Skills: 
Increasing 
Science 
Technolog
y 
Engineerin
g and 
Maths 
(STEM) 
skills in 
Gloucester
shire

Skills Support 
for the 
Workforce: 
STEM

(STEM)

Serco This project provides 
STEM related training 
which will support the 
development of a skilled 
and adaptable workforce 
in SMEs in priority sectors 
in Gloucestershire.

The project delivers short 
courses and qualifications 
to improve STEM-related 
skills in the workforce and 
aims to reach 556 
individuals.

£859,950 
via 
Education 
and Skills 
Funding 
Agency 
(ESFA)

Rob Matts 
and 
Lily Matic

Rob.Matts@serc
o.com 
lily.matic@serco.
com

Skills: 
Increasing 
the range 
and 
volume of 
apprentice
ship 
provision 
in 

Apprenticeship 
support

(Apprenticeship 
Clearing House)

TBC – This 
contract has 
not yet been 
awarded by 
the ESFA and 
DWP.

GFirst LEP, Gloucestershire 
County Council and other 
partners are keen for 
more local employers 
(especially SMEs and 
micro-businesses) to take 
on apprentices and get the 
support they need to do 
this. 

£1,708,000 
via 
Education 
and Skills 
Funding 
Agency 
(ESFA)

TBC TBC

Page 38

mailto:Rob.Matts@serco.com
mailto:Rob.Matts@serco.com
mailto:lily.matic@serco.com
mailto:lily.matic@serco.com
mailto:Rob.Matts@serco.com
mailto:Rob.Matts@serco.com
mailto:lily.matic@serco.com
mailto:lily.matic@serco.com


Gloucester
shire, 
particularl
y for SMEs.

This project supports the 
local drive and the 
Government’s aim to 
increase economic growth 
through the establishment 
of apprenticeship 
opportunities, the 
recruitment of 
apprentices, the National 
Apprenticeship Service 
and it will support SMEs 
wanting to recruit 
apprentices but who find 
the current system 
complicated.

Skills: 
Developing 
entrepren
eurship 
skills for 
students in 
Gloucester
shire

TBC

(Employment 
pathfinder - 
Entrepreneur 
skills)

Gloucestershir
e College

There is a positive 
entrepreneurial culture in 
Gloucestershire with 14% 
of the employment base 
self- employed. In addition 
to this the county has the 
second highest survival 
rate of start-up businesses 
after three years. 

This project aims to build 
on this entrepreneurial 
culture and to drive 
economic growth ensuring 
entrepreneurs, particularly 
in high value sectors, have 
access to the support and 
skills provision they need. 

This project will support 
the development of 
approx. 660 entrepreneurs 
of any age by providing 
the fundamental skills 
needed to develop and 
grow a successful 
business. 

£1,023,200 
via 
Education 
and Skills 
Funding 
Agency 
(ESFA)

Lisa Taylor lisa.taylor@glos
col.ac.uk

Employabi
lity: 
Supporting 
local 
people 
into work

Work Start 
Gloucestershire

learndirect This project aims to 
support a range of 
unemployed people to 
help them overcome any 
barriers they face getting 
into/back into 
employment. In particular, 
it will help people who are 
long-term unemployed or 
inactive or who have a 
basic skills needs.

£1,215,000 Natasha 
Panchbhaya

Natasha.Panch
bhaya@learndir
ect.com

Social Going the Extra GCC and The Going the Extra Mile £3,100,000 Vikki vikki.walters@gl
oucestershire.g

Page 39

mailto:lisa.taylor@gloscol.ac.uk
mailto:lisa.taylor@gloscol.ac.uk
mailto:Natasha.Panchbhaya@learndirect.com
mailto:Natasha.Panchbhaya@learndirect.com
mailto:Natasha.Panchbhaya@learndirect.com
mailto:vikki.walters@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:vikki.walters@gloucestershire.gov.uk


inclusion/
Employabi
lity:

Mile Gloucestershir
e Gateway 
Trust

(GEM) Project aims to 
engage with and support 
Gloucestershire’s hardest-
to-reach, most vulnerable 
unemployed and 
financially-excluded 
people, who face multiple 
barriers to work.

GEM’s primary objective is 
to move these people 
closer towards education, 
training, volunteering or 
work, including self-
employment. (Including 
referrals to other 
employability support 
projects or programmes).

(including 
1:1 match 
funding 
from Big 
Lottery)

Walters, 
GCC and 
Jason 
Dunsford, 
GGT

ov.uk

jason@ggtrust.
org 

Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board
To date, board members have been recruited for 12 out of a total of 16 available places and 
further work is underway to recruit and confirm the remaining members, including the person to 
represent the District Councils as employers. Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cabinet Member – Economy, 
Skills and Growth will represent Gloucestershire County Council on the Board and, along with 
the District Councils representative, will provide the link to the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC)  and Matt Burgess, Principal of Gloucestershire College and 
GFirst LEP Board member will provide the link to the GFirst LEP Board.
Induction sessions have been arranged for 3rd and 21st July to:

 Provide members with an opportunity to get to know one another
 To input into what success looks like for the Board and how they would (and would not) 

like the Board to work
 Receive and discuss further information about the current employment and skills 

landscape in Gloucestershire
 Start to identify further areas of work to prepare for the full meetings of the Board which 

will start in the Autumn

Evidence base and initial skills strategy
An evidence base for the Board is currently being prepared and will be emailed to members of 
the Board ahead of the induction sessions. The evidence base provides a wide-ranging 
overview of employment and skills in the county and should enable Board members to identify 
the priority issues for the Board to work on as well as any specific aspects to ‘drill down into’ 
further e.g. careers information, advice and guidance, apprenticeships, etc.). This in turn will 
enable the Board to prepare a skills strategy for Gloucestershire. This initial evidence base will 
be made available to GEGJC and Joint Scrutiny Committee members once it has been 
reviewed and subsequent documents prepared for the Employment and Skills Board will also 
be made available. The individual meetings that Pete Carr is having with District leaders and 
chief executives will contribute to this evidence base and other information for the Board.

Members of the Employment and Skills Board
Members confirmed on the Board to date are:

Page 40

mailto:vikki.walters@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:jason@ggtrust.org
mailto:jason@ggtrust.org


Name Role on ESB Position Organisation
Matthew Burgess Further Education 

representative and GFirst 
LEP Board member

Principal Gloucestershire College

Michael Carter Construction sector 
representative

Managing Director E.G.Carter and Company 
Limited

Sean Clee Health and social care 
employer respresentative

Chief Executive 2gether NHS Foundation 
Trust

Catherine Coughlan Department of Work and 
pensions (DWP) 
representative

DWP/Jobcentre Plus

Jason Dunsford Voluntary sector 
employer representative

Head of Employment and 
Skills

Gloucestershire Gateway 
Trust

Julia Falaki Gloucestershire and 
Wiltshire Training 
Partnership 
representative

Partnership Manager Gloucestershire and 
Wiltshire Partnership

Andrew Kirk Vice chair and banking 
and finance sector 
representative

Area Director, 
Gloucestershire
SME Banking

Lloyds Bank

Russell Marchant Higher education 
representative

Principal Hartpury College

Anne Stokes Secondary schools 
representative

Gloucestershire 
Association of Secondary 
Heads

Lynden Stowe Public sector employer 
representative

Cabinet Member – 
Economy, Skills and 
Growth

Gloucestershire County 
Council

Linsey Temple Private training provider 
representative

Chief Executive Gloucestershire 
Engineering Training

Sara-Jane Watkins Further Education 
representative

Principal South Gloucestershire and 
Stroud College

In addition, Kathryn Wagstaff of the Strategic Alliance and Pete Carr of GCC and GFirst LEP 
will be supporting the Board together with further GCC colleagues to provide secretariat support 
as required.

Budget for the Employment and Skills Board
Leadership Gloucestershire has requested confirmation of the budget for the Employment and 
Skills Board. As reported to GEGJC in March 2017, there is no separate budget for the ESB but 
GCC is investing over £100k over two years into establishing the Employment and Skills Board 
through officer support, research and so resources are being sought from a number of sources 
including GCC, GFirst LEP, Strategic Alliance. Initially, the majority of the budget requirements 
for the ESB will be: staffing to act as secretariat for the ESB; research costs in order to 
investigate and report on the various strands of activity that the ESB determine as highest 
priority in 2017-18; preparation of the skills strategy for Gloucestershire; preparation and 
delivery of the action plan/s resulting from the skills strategy and subsequent ESB decisions.

In terms of budget for skills and employment project development/delivery the ESB will not 
have a separate budget and will seek to achieve it’s goals through influencing the organisations 
that do hold local skills and employment budgets (i.e. local colleges,  universities, and 
independent training providers, local schools,  GCC – Adult Education, etc. ). Longer-term, if a 
devolution deal is achieved for Gloucestershire, there will be the opportunity for the ESB to 
influence the priorities for and the delivery of the Adult Education Budget (AEB).

Page 41



Page 42


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Economic Growth Agenda
	7 GFirst LEP Update
	Appendix 1 Growth Deal Forward Look May 2017
	Appendix 2 Summary Table May 2017
	Appendix 3 Dashboard May2017
	Appendix 4 Reallocation timetable

	8 Business Rate Pool
	10 Employment and Skills

